CH-15 Sarum Constructed
Spring-Summer, 1717
Shed added Fall-
Winter, 1736

The oldest section of Sarum is a box-framed, hall and parlor
dwelling, measuring 32 by 18 feet. Its carcass 1is a highly
evolved "Virginia" frame, elegant in its cost-effectiveness. Its
carpenter chose easily worked woods, joined them simply, and
raised them in a <carefully preconceived process employing
preassembled sidewall panels and roof trusses, The four-bay
structure has studs and rafters on 24 1inch centers. The
principal members of the carcass are all yellow poplar, a timber
chosen for its lightness and ease of working. The studs,
rafters, and clapboard (wall and sub-roof) are riven chestnut
white oak. The round-end roof shingles (original) are chest-
nut (?). Only the principal timbers and stud feet are mortised
and tenoned. The pre-dominant joint 1in the structure 1is the
nailed 1lap joint. The roof trusses rest on tilted false
plates--the oldest firmly dated examples. The product of four
gererations of Chesapeake 1innovation, only two clumsy joints
(false plate to tie beam and brace to post) mark Sarum as less
evolved than the Brome Granary of 1758 (SM-33G).

Soon after the first section of the building went up, a light
structure, perhaps a grape arbor, was attached to the west side.
That appendage was removed c¢.1736 when the present shed was
added. The house and shed were extended north and south later in
the 18th century.

Joseph Pile, Gentleman, built Sarum on or near the site of
his grandfather's 17th-century dwelling.
References:

Carsoﬁt-"The 'Virginia House' in Maryland," Maryland
Historical Magazine 69 (1974): 191-95

Stone, "Adaptation to the Chesapeake: The Evolution of
the Virginia House, 1607-1750," 1981. Research Files,
St. Mary's City Commission

Carson, Rivoire, and Stone, CH-15, Architectural Files,
St. Mary's City Commission

Lorena S. Walsh, Charles Co. biography files, Saverna
Park, Maryland
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DESCRIBE THE RRESENT AND ORIGINAL (”knc‘;l;;rPHVSICAL APPEARANCE

Three primary construction dates are to be considered when
reviewing the architecture of Sarum. The first stage 1s believ
ed to be the dwelling house mentioned in the will of Joseph
Pile (probated 1691-2). As near as can be determined the house
was a one story plus attic frame structure measurling 19 by 33
feet having an external chimney at each end (east and west),

a two story porch (or stair) tower at the north facade flanked
by & single peaked dormer to each slde, and two doors and one
window (?) at the south facade. The whole of the exterior was
sheathed wilth riven clapboards apparently painted white and
wilth the exposed eave construction (a common feature of Mary-
land houses from the late seventeenth to the mid-eighteenth
centuries) pailnted a dark red. There were two main ground
floor rooms, each displaying exposed primary framing (corner
posts, wall posts, wall plates and ceiling joists, none of
whlch were beaded or chamfered, and all apparently pit sawn,
then planed smooth), plaster walls, and wood floors. The east
room was palilnted a pale grey or green with the ceiling Jjolsts
and the underside of the attic flooring painted (or stained) a
dark red. The whole of the west room was palnted white. There
were at least three attic chambers, including the porch chamber
and theilr only source of llghting and ventilation was by the
two dormer windows and a conjectured porch chamber window, at
the north slde. Sometime prior to the second stage (south
extension, ca. 1700), the roof was resheathed with round end
shingles.

The next stage of construction consisted of an extension
to the south elevation wall, and occured circa 1700. This
frame addition extended the length of the original south wall
of the flirst stage and was of one story height. The rear slope
of the roof of the first stage was raised and extended in order
to accomodate the new addition. This alteration gave the housc
its present "salt box" profile. It is not known how many rooms
the addition contained but there were at least two. An
external chimney was constructed at the east end and it 1is
possible that a simllar chimney was bullt at the west end.
However, if this 1s so, then 1ts foundations have been complete
ly removed as have the foundations of the conjectured west
chimney of the first stage. The exterlor walls of the addition
were sheathed with riven clapboards and the roof shingled.

Approximately thirty years following the second stage a
more extensive alteration was made to Sarum. Each of the end
walls (east and west) were extended and new end walls of brick,
laid 1n Flemish bond to the ground floor ceiling levefl and then
English bond above, were constructed. This extension gave the
house 1ts present dimensions of 31 by 53 feet. Reémoved at this
time was the north facade wall of the first stage (but only up
to the wall plate), the porch (or stair) tower, and the two

L ]

-

original dormer windows (see continuatlon sheet 1)
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SARUM
7. DESCRIPTION

The new facade wall provided for a door flanked by two win-
dows to each slide and three regularly spaced peaked roof dormerc
above, Each of the brick end walls contain massive chimneys with
the single large stacks formed by continuing the gable above the
roof ridge. On the interior all of the originally exposed fram-
ing was plastered over, including the celling Jolsts. Partition
walls were relocated and a center hall with an open stair was
constructed. At this time the new northwest room was completely
sheathed with rectangular fielded panels.

Post circa 1730 alterations include the addition of a one
story plus attic (the latter used as a storeroom) kitchen wing
to the east end sometime in the mid-eighteenth century. Some
interior remodeling occurred in the late eighteenth century,
such as the replacement of window sash and doors. This also
Included the introduction of stylistically sophisticated moldings
(cornice, chairrail, paneled dadoe, and mantle) in the northeast
room. The masterfully .executed carvings of this room contrast
sharply to the otherwlge simpler 1nterior of Sarum but in no way

does 1t detract from the overall architectural merit of the housel

-
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1 December 1980 CH-15 Sarum
Dendrochronology Expedition with H. J. Heikkenen et. al.
Relative date of shingle roof.

Carson, in the "The 'Virginia House' in Maryland" (Md. Historical
Magazine 69:191-95) states that the clapboard roof of the first section of
Sarum was heavily weathered prior to the recovering the roof with round-end
shingles early in the 18th-century. This is incorrect. The shingles appear
to have been applied to the roof when the clapboarding was only a few months
old as the clapboard sealed under the shingles are virtually unweathered:

Their lower edges are still a bright reddish-brown

Their grain has been raised only slightly (i.e., the soft
summer wood eroded) by weathering. While relief is
apparent to the touch and is visible in raking light,

. the amount is very slight. Except in contrast to the
totally unweathered wood protected by overlap, the wood
appears smooth and unweathered.

The surface of the clapboard are hard. They can be scratched
only slightly with fingernail (H.J.H. broke a nail in the
attempt) .

The clapboard nails are rusted only slightly—the edges of
their facets are still sharply defined.

By comparison with the clapboard of the "New Tobacco House" - riven
about six months ago - I am confident that the clapboard roof of Sarum was
exposed less than a year. It was installed as a sub-roof for shingling and
as a temporary roof.

In contrast, the shingle roof covering the clapboards was well worn
although not worn out prior to the construction of the shed. Very few of
the shingles were missing when the roof was buried and only a small per-
centage had curled. Rain erosion is visible, but slight (5%?)--in striking
contrast to the erosion of the oak shingles of the Brome Granary where the
erosion is in the order of 50 to 60%). But the shingles feel soft to the
touch and they can be gouged easily with a fingernail. The penetration of
decay into the end-grain of the shingles is pronounced. H.J.H. suggests
that the shingles are chestnut. (He will check samples later) Corrosion of

the shingle nails is slight, but the definition of the facets has been softened

by rusting.

Sample Locations and Availability

Except for clapboard (which have had the sapwood removed), the number of
oak samples is limited at this time. The principal timbers of the phase 1
structure are popular with the exception of the floor joists, and these are
virtually inaccessible except for the one joist previously sampled. While
half a dozen of the riven oak roof rafters have wane edges, beetle damage to
their sapwood has been so extensive that it was impossible to collect core
samples by drilling. We attempted to remove a slice from one rafter where
its center had been removed during remodelling, but the beetle riddled sap-
wood disintegrated from the vibration of the saw. Only at the feet of the

CH-
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CH-15 Sarum
1 December 1980

-2
rafters—--where they had been well ventilated--was it possible to remove
usable sapwood. Four rafter feet were sawn off where they projected over

the false plate.

llocrth Extension

The rafters are pit sawn yellow poplar.

v
Garry Wheeler Stone

December 1980
cc: H. J. Heikken n
Mark Edwards)
Cary Carson
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